
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

RE(;TON 4 

SAMNLNN 


ATLAt-.1'fA FEDERAL CENTER 
61 I''ORSYTH STREET 

ATLA!\TA GEORG1A 30303-8960 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Mr. H. Allen Faulkner 
Ascend Perfonnance Materials I.LC 
P.O. Box 2204 
Decatur. Alabama 35609-2204 

SUBJECT: 	 AssenJ Performance Materials 
Consent Agreement and final OnkT 
Dockel No. EPCRA-04-2011-200&(b) 

lJcar Mr. F au'kner: 

Enclosed please find an executed copy of the Consent Agrccmenland Final Order 
(CAFO) that resolves the Emerget1cy Plarming and Community Right-to-Know Act of 
1986 (EPCRA) matter (Duckct No. EPCRA-04-20 11-200R(h» Involclug Ascend 
PerformMce Materials. Th¢ CAFO was t1Ied with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as 
required by 40 C.F.R. Part 22 and becamt: dfective on the date of the firing. 

Also enclosed, please find a copy oftne "Notice of Securities and Exchange 
Commission Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings." Tills 
du~ument puts you on notice of your potential dUly to disclose to the Security and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) any environmental enforcement actions taken by the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). ]fyou have any qu~stiQns with regards to the 
SEC's environmental disclosure requirements, you may refer to the contact phone 
number at the bottom of the SEC Notice. 

If you have any questions. please call Mr. Erika White at (404) 562-9195. 

WM'
Catjlih B. Falconer. htef 
E~RA Enforcement Section 

Enclosures 

Internet AOO!~ss (URL). http://wwwepa.gov 

Reoyel~. Prim .. d Wlth V"'9fl1flQre Oi Bas?d Ink' on Recyti<l<I Paller (M,n,(j>",,., 3(ls, P~umj)f) 


http:http://wwwepa.gov


UNITED STATES ENVIRONME~AL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 


IN THE MATTER OF: ) 

) DocketNumber: EPCRA-04-2011-2008(b) 

Ascend Perfonnance Material); ) 
Post Office Box 2204 ) Pursuant to Section 109 of the Comprehensive 
Decatur. Alabama. ) Environmental Response, Compensation. and 

) Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended,41 
) U,S,c' § 9609; Section 325 of th,e ~enCYn 

Respondent, ) PI.nning and Community Right-Ib-){now.Ac( . 
) (EPCRA), 42 U,S,c' § 11045 ' ,)r<j 

,~__---1l --' 

,CONSENT AGRERJI,lEm AND FINAL ORDER 

L Nature of Ibe Actioo 

I. This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 109 of the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, 42 U,S,C, 
§ 9609; Section 325 of the Emergency Planning and Community Rigbt-to,Know Act (EPCR.....), 
42 U,s,c, § 11045; and pursuant to the "Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing 
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocationffermination or Suspension of 
Pemrits" (Consolidated Rules), codified at 40 c,p,R, Part 22, Complainant is the Director of the 
Air, Pesticides, and Toxics Management Division. Region 4, United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA). Respondent is Ascend Perfonnance Material" 

2, Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement 
pursuant to 40 C,P.R. § 22, J8(b) and desire to resolVe this matter and settle the allegations 
described herein without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or 
testimony, the making of any argument. or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, and in 
accordance with 40 C,P.R. §§ 22,!3(b) and 22,18(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) will simultaneously commence and conclude this matter. 

II, Preliminary Slatements 

3, The authority to take action under Section 109 of CERCLA. 42 U,S,C, § 9609 
and Se<.1ion 325 ofEPCRA, 42 U,S,C, § 11045. is vested in the Administrator of EPA. The 
Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority under CERCLA and under EPCRA to the 
Regional Administrators by EPA Delegations 14-31 and 22-3,A, both dated May 11,1994, The 
Regional Administrator. Region 4. has redelegated to the Director, Air, Pcstiddes and Toxics 
Management Division, the authority under CERCLA by EPA Region 4 Delegation 14-31 dated 
March 8,1999. and updated August 6,2004, and the authority under EPCRA by EPA Region 4 
Delegation 22,3-A, dated November g, 1994, Pursuant to these delegations, the Director of the 
Air. Pesticides and Toxics Management Dh,1s1on has the authority to commence an enforcement 
action as the Complainant in this matter. 
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4. Respondent is a corporation doing business in the State of Alabama. 

5. Respondent is a "person" as defmed in Section 101(21) ofCERCLA, 42 U.s,C. 
§ 9601(21), and Section 329(7) ofEPCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 11049(7). 

6. Respondent has a "facility" as that term is dcfmed by Section 101(9) of 
CERClA, 42 U.S,C. § 9601(9), and by Section 329(4) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11049(4), 

7. Respondent's facility is located at 1050 Chemstrand Avenue, Decatur, Alabama 
35601. 

8, Respondent is an "owner or operator'" of the facility as that term is defrned by 
Section 101(20XA) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9601(20XA). 

A. Vi<>latjQns of CERCLA 103 

9, Sec1ion 102(.) of CERCLA, 42 U,S,C, § 9602(0), required the Administrator of 
EPA to publish a list of substances designated as hazardous substances which, when relea.<;ed 
into the environment. may present substantial danger to public health or welfare or the 
environment and to promulgate regulations establishing the quantity of any hazardous substance 
the release of which was required to be reported under Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 9603(a). EPA has published and amended such a list, including the corresponding reportable 
quantities (RQ) for those substances. This lillt was initially published on April 4, 1985 (SO Fed. 
~. 13474) and i. perindically amended. The list is codified at 40 C.ER. Part 302, 

10. Section 103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9603(a). and the regulations foond at 
40 C.P.R. Part 302.6, require a person in charge of a fa<.1.lityor vessel to immediately nOHfy the 
National Response Center (NRC). as soon as he or she has knowledge of a release Qf a hazardous 
substance from such facility or vessel in an amount equal to. (lr greater than the RQ. 

11. Respondent was in charge of the facility during the relevant period described 
below. 

12. Propionitrilc (CAS #107-12-0) is a "hazardous substance" as that tenn is dollned 
by Section 101(14).42 U,S,C. § 9601(14), with an RQ of 10 poond,. as spedfied in 40 C.F.R. 
§ 302.4. 

13. Onlanonry 16, 2006, Respondent bad arclease ofpropionitrile (CAS #107-12-0) 
above the RQ at the facility. 

14. Respondent violated the notification reqUirements of Section 103(,) of CERCLA, 
42 U,S,C. § 9603(0), by famng to immediately notify the l'<'RC as soon as Respondent had 
knowledge of the release of propionitrile (CAS #107-12-0) in an amount equal to or greater than 
its RQ at Respondent's facility and is therefore subject to the assessment of penalties under 
Section 109 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609. 
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15. Pursuant to Section 109 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609, and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, 
EPA may ."sess a penJllty not to exceed $32,500 for each violation of Section 103(a) uf 
CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(.), that occurred after March 15,2004, but before January 12, 2009. 
Each day a violation of Section 103 continues constitutes a separate violation. Civil penalties 
under Section 109 ofCERCLA. 42 U.S.C. § 9609. may be asscssed by Administrative Order. 

B. Violations of Section 304(a) EPCRA 

16. Section 304(a) ofEPCRA. 42 U.S.C. §llOO4(a). and the regulations found at 
40 CP.R. § 355.40. Subpart C, reqnire the owner or operator of a facility at which hazardous 
chemicals are produced, used or stored. (0 immediately notify the State Emergency Response 
Commi"ion (SERCj and Lccal Emergency Planning C.ommittee (LEPC) when there has been a 
release of a CERCLA hazardous s.ubstance or extremely hazardous substance in an amount equal 
to or greater than the RQ. 

17. Respondent was the O\vner or operator of the fadl1ty during the relevant period 
described below. 

18. At aU times relevant to this matter, the facility produced, used, or stored 
"hazardouschemica1.s" as defined under Section 31 I(e) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C § I 1021(e), and 
under 29 C.F.R. S1910.1200«). 

19. Propionitrile (CAS #107-12-0) is an "extremely hazardous substance" as that teml 
is delined by Section 329(3) of EPCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 11049(3), with an RQ of 10 pounds, as 
specified in 40 CP.R. PIlrt 355, App', A & B. 

20. On January 16. 2006, and March IS. 200S. Respondent had a release of 
propionitrile (CAS #107-12-0) above the RQ at the facility. 

21. Respondent violated tbe notification requirements of Se<..iion 304(a) ofEPCRA, 
42 U.S.C. § 11000(a), by failing to immediately notify the SERC and LEPC as ,oon as 
Respondent had knowledge of the relea .. of propionitrilc (CAS #107-12-0) in an lUllOunt equal 
to or greater than the RQ at Respondent's facility, and is therefore subject to the as",ssment of 
penalties under Section 325 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §11045. 

C. ViQlation of Section 304(.) of EPCRA 

22. Sectioo304(c) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C §11004(c), and the regulations found at 
40 C.P.R. § 355, Subpart C, require the Qwner or operator of a facility at which hazardou.< 
chemicals are produced, used or stored, to provide a written follow-up emergency notice to the 
SERe and LEPC when there has been a release of a CERCLA hazardous substance or extremely 
hazardous substance in an amount equal to or greater than the reportable quantity. 

23. Respondt-'Ut was the owne-r or operator of the facility during the relevant period 
described below. 
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24, At all ttmes relevant to this matter. the facility produced, used. or stored 
'hazardQus chemicals" as defined under Section311(e) ofEPCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 1I021(e). and 
under 29 C.F.R. § 19lO, 1200(0). 

2:5, Propionitrile (CAS #1 07~12-0) 15 an "extremely hazardous substance" as that term 
is defmed by Section 329(3) ofEPCIl.<\. 42 U.S.C. § 11049(3), with an RQ of 10 PQunds. as 
specified in 40 C.F.R. Parr 355, Apps. A & B. 

26. On March 18. 2008. ResPQndent had a release of propionitrile (CAS #107-12-0) 
above the RQ at the facility. 

27. ResPQudent violated the notification requirements of Section 304( c) of EPCRA. 
42 U,S,C. § llOO4{c), by failing to provide a written follow-up emergency notice to the SERe 
and the LEPC when there had been a release ofpropionitrile (CAS #107-12-0) in an amount 
equal to or greater than the RQ at Respondent's facility. and is therefore suhject to the 
""."ment of penalties under Section 325 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 11045. 

28. Pursuant to Section 325(b) ofEPCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 1l045(b). and 40 C.F.R. 
Part 19, EPA may assess. a penalty of not more than $32,500 for each violation of Sections 
304(0) and (e) ofEPCR..<\. 42 U.S.C. § 11004(a) and (e), that occurred al\er March 15. 2004. but 
before January 12.2009. Civil penalties under Section 325(b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(b), 
may be assessed by Administrative Order. 

D. Violations of Section 313 of EPCRA 

29. Section 313 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.C. § 11023, and 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.22 and 372.30. 
require the owner or operator of a facility that (a) has 10 or more full-time employee,; (b) is in a 
SlAIldard Indu,trial Classification (SIC) major group or iodustry listed in 40 C.F.R. ~ 372.23(a) 
for which the corresponding North Americlllllndustry CI."illcation Sj'5tern (NAlCS) .ub"""tor 
and industry code. are listed in 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.23(b) and 372.23(c»); and (c) dlat 
manufactured, processed, or other\\odse used a toxic cltemicallisted lUlder Section 313(c) and in 
40 C.F.R. § 372.65, in excess of an applicable threshold quantity e'tablished uoder EPCRA 
Section 313(f) and set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 372.25. during the calendar your. to complete and 
,uhmit a toxic chemical release inventory rCPQrting Form R (EPA Form 9350-1) to the 
Administrator of EPA and to the State in which tire facility i.located, by July 1 for the preceding 
calendar year for each toxic chemical known by the owner or operator to be manufactured. 
processed. or otherwiF.c used in quantities exceedmg the estabHshed threshold quantity during 
Ule preceding calendar year. 

30. As set forth at EPCAA Seclion 313(f), 42 U.S.C. § 1I023(f). and 40 C.F.R. 
§ 372.25, the reporting threshold amount for a toxic chemkaltnanufactu:rcd or processed at a 
facility is 25,000 pounds: per calendar year. The reporting threshold for a toxic chemical 
otherwise used at a facility is 10.000 PQund,. 

31. ResPQll<!ent has 10 or more full·lime employees. ,.., defined at 40 C.F.R. § 372.3 
at its facility. 
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32. Responrlent's facility is classified under the SIC code 2869 and the NAICS code 
325199. 

33. Respondent's facility is classified in a covered SIC code a~ described at 
40 C.F.R § 372.22 and in a covered NAICS code as described at 40 C.P.R. § 372.23. 

34. Ammonia is a toxic chemical listed under EPCRA Section 313(e) and 
40 C.P.R. § 372.65. 

35. Respondent's facility manufactured the toxic chemical ammonia in excess of the 
25,000 pound threshold quantity established under EPCRA Section 313(0 and 40 C.P.R. 372.25, 
during calendar year 2005. 

36. Respondent failed to submit a Faml R or Fonn A for aIlliUonia to the 
Administrator of EPA and to Ole official designated by the Governor of the State of Alabama by 
July 1 of the required reporting year. 

37. Respondent violated the reporting requirements of Section 313 of EPCR", 
42 U.S.C. § 11023, at its facility for calendar year 2005 lor annnonia and is therefore subject to 
the "".e"men! of penalties under Section 325 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11045, 

38. Pun;uanllo Section 325(e) ofEPCR!\, 42 U.S.c. § 11045(c), and 
40 C,P,R. Part 19, EPA may assess a civil penalty of not more than $32,500 for each violation of 
Scctio1l313 that occurred after March 15, 2004, but before January 12, 2009, Eacb day a 
yiolation of Section 313 continues constttutes a separate violation. Civil penalties under Section 
325(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.s.c. § 11045(0). may be ,"",",sed by an Administrative Order. 

IV. Consent Agreement 

39, For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations 
set out above but neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set out above. 

40, Responuent waives any right to oome~t the allegations and its right to appeal the 
proposed Final Order accompanying the Consent Agreement. 

41, Respondent consent'; to the assessment of and agrees to pay the civil penalty a~ 
set forth in thi' CAFO. 

42. Respondent certifies that, as of lhe dale of its execution of this CAFO. it is in 
compliance with all relevant requirements of EPCRA and CERCLA. 

43, Compliance with the CAFO shaH resolve the allegations of violations contained 
herein. This CAFO shall not otherwise affect any liability of Respondent ro the United States 
other than as expressed herein. Neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an 
enforcement action agrufiSt ReScpondent for violation of any federal or state statute. regulation or 
permit, to initiate an action for inuninent and substantial endangennent. or to pursue criminal 
enforcement. 
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44. Cumplamanl and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of thi" 
CAPO. The parties agree that the settlement of this matter is in the public interest and that this 
CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirement> of CERCL'\ and EPCRA. 

V. Final Order 

45. Respondent shall P"Y a civil penalty of SIX THOUSl,ND POeR HUNDRED 
FIFTY DOLLARS (S6,450) for the CERCL'" violalio11 which ,hall be paid within thirty (30) 
days of the effective date oflhb CAFO. 

46. Respondent shall pay the CERCLA civil penalty by forwarding a cashier's or 
certified check. payable to "EPA Hazardous Substance Superfund" to one of dIe tollowing 
addresses: 

flY MAlL BY OVERNIGHT 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency U.S. Bank 
Superfund Payments. Attention: Natalie Pearson (314)418-40&7 
CinciImali Finance Center 1005 Convention Plaza 
P.O. Box 979076 Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 
51. Louis, Missouri 63197·9000 S1. Louis, Missouri 63101 

The check shall rcterelli. ..'C on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO, 

47. Respondent shall pay an EPCRA civil penal,y of FORTY TWO THOllSAl'D 
SEVEN HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($42,750) for the EPCRA violatiol1> which shall be paid 
within thirty (30) dayl. of the effective date of tIth CAFO. 

48. Respondent shal! pay the penalty by forwarding a cashier's or certified check 
payable to ''Treasurer, United States of America," to the foUowing addresrs; 

BY MAIL BY QVERNIGHT 
U.S. Envirorunental Protection Agency U.S. Bank 
Fines and Penalties Attention: Katalie PClIThon (314) 418·4087 
Cincumati FUiallcC Center 1005 Convention Plaza 
P.O. Box 979077 Mail Station SL·MO·C2GL 

S<. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000 St. Louis, Missouri 63101 


The check shall reference 011 it:> fa>ce the name and the Docket Number of the CAFo. 

49. At the time of payment. Respondent shall send a separate copy of eal:h check, and 
a written slatement that payment has been made in accordam:e with this CAFO, to the following 
persons at the following addre~se!:o: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 forsyth Streel, s.w. 
Allanta. Georgia 30303 
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Erika White 
Air, Pesticides & Toxics Management Division 
t; ,S, Environmental Protection Agency. Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S,W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

SaundtWilson 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
U,S, Eavironmental Protection Agency, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S,W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

50, For the purposes of state and federal income taxes, Respondent shall not be 
entitled. and agrees not to auempt. to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant to this CAFO, Any attempt hy Respondent to deduct any such payment. shall 
constitute a violation of this CAFO 

51, PursuanllO 31 U.S.C, § 3717. EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on 
debts owed to the United States and a charge 10 cover the cost of processing and handling a 
delinquent dainL Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the effective 
date of this CAFO jf the penalty is nor pllid by the dare required. Interest will be assessed at the 
rate established by the Secretary ofTrcasury pursuant to 31 U,S,c' § 3717, A charge will he 
assessed to cover the costs of debt collection, induding process-fig and handling costs and 
attomcy fees, In addition, a penalty charge will be assessed on any portion of the debt that 
remains delinquent more than ninety (90) days afler payment is due. 

52. Complainant and R~pondent shall bear their own costs and attorney fees in this 
matter, 

53. This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent. its successors, and assigns. 

54. The foltowing individual is authorized to receiVe service for EPA in this 
proceeding: 

Caron B, Falconer 
Air, Pesticides & Toxic!! Management Division 
U,S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S,W, 
Atlanta, Georgi. 30303 

55. Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or 
she is fully aothorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally bind that 
party to it. 
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VI. EIT""tive Date 

50. The effective date of this CAFO shall be the date on which the CArD is filed 
with the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

ASCEND PERFORMA..'1CE MATERIALS 

Date: 

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

By: Date:ll~~~\k~~ 

Beverly H. Banister, D' ector 
Air, Pesticides & Taxies Management Division 
U,S. Envirorunental Protection Agency, Region 4 

Susan B. Schuh 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

1 hereby certify that I have this day served a true and correct copy of the foregoing 
Consent Agreement and Final Order, In !he Mauer of Ascend Performance Materials (Docket 
No. EPCRA 04-2011.2008(h)), on the parties listed below in the manner indicated: 

Caron B. Fal,'Q_ (Vi. EPA's internal mail) 
Air, Pesticides & TOX1cS Management Division 
U$. Environmental Protel.,1ion Agency, ReglOfl 4 
61 F'otsyth Street 
Atlanta. GA 30303 

KevinB. Smith,Esq. (Vi. EPA', internal mail) 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
u.s. Environmental Protection Agency, Regio1l4 
61 Fo"yth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Ascend Performance Materials (Certified Mail- Return Receipt Requested) 
Post Office Box 2204 
Decatur, Alabama 35609~2204 

Date: la- d, ?- JO 
Patricia A, Bullock. Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-9511 
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EPA ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLI! CONTROL NUMBEK FORM 

TO BIl COMPLEI1!Q BY nu: QRlGINATII!G omg: 
(Attadla to97 oItMfiDIIl CIfdet tDdtz:a...matai ...... 1O~) 

_....""'-__ Saundi Wilson11ds __~,_~:________-:;:;::::::-________ '" 

{N.... 

A...........Orda1C_Aa1:..._ .. 
o Ji'MO C'OU.ECTS PI\YMINT.".,...._.c..o_,_... 
Seat witIl bIB -- o 
Not H:al willi bIB 

D """....alll!at·c... _ ............ 


o 1'bIIt...~... 

( ~, . i." 'r r "". ~ 4' "0n.TobIJ.lroIlarAflDultoltIMtReeli...... ' rrcL '- ;' l .."f)v r'j(--f~ -:- Ii J 

{Il.lmt,........... sc:bt4Wtol·......andt~ _dM& s..CMIMJ'sidI.ua.~ 

n.ec...D<doIl_, (Pc fi\ eN d-D\i ' dOD1(~) . 
n.eSlloS_""_--,____________________ 

n.. ...... __....."""""_... .....______ 

Oi'IL3i_~t&\.."--...-Ecnit •• w... 'SedW l)et..............om..
""'*' 0 t "JIIr6e aM lUI 
I".O'.."u......~$CatIM. 
W.' , a-, D.C- lttM 
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